
Civil

IN THE UNITED STATES DIST~CT COURT
FOR THE DIS.TR~T~[~ COLORADO

7., 0ro 07_0 ?ri o.,_, 59

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Ptaintiff,

VEND DZR~CT, INC.,
a Colorado corporation; and

GARY LUCKNER, individually and as an
officer of the corporation,

Defendants.

COMPLAINTFOR CIVIl. PENALTIES, CONSUMER REDRESS, PERMANENT
INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE P~LIBF

Plaintiff, the United States of ~nerica, acting upon notification and authorization to the

Attorney General by flae Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "the Con-auission"), pursuant to

Section 16(a)(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U2S,C. § 56(a)(1), for its

complaint alleges:

1.    Plaintiffbfings this action under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), 16(a), and 19 of

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C, §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), and 57b, to secure civil penaltieS,

consumer redress, a permanent injunction and other equitable relief for the defendants’ violations

of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, l 5 U.S.C. § 45(a), and the FTC’s Trade’Regulation Rule entitled





THE DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS PRACTICES

7. The defendants offer and sell vending machine business vemures. The defgndants

promote their business opportunities through classified advertisements in newspapers nationwide

and through their Web site on the h~temet, www.venddirect.net. The defendants’ advertisements



fi’om the Television 5~fomercial and my machine is malting over $125.00 per week! Vend Direct

is wonderful!"’ Aaaother page of the protnotional materials contains a profit chart, showing that

30 machines can generate $3,000.00 profit When emptied while 100 triachines can produce

$10,000.00 .profit. The protnotional materials also suggest a 700 percent return on investment.

10. Defendants fail to provide to prospective business venture purchasers an earnings

claim document containing information substantiating their earnings claims, fail to have a

reasonable basis for the earnings claims at the time they were made, and/or fail to disclose that

materials, which constitute a reasonable basis for the claims, are available.

11. Defendants’ Web site also represents that purchasers who buy defendants’

vending machine business ventures will earn a substantial income. For example, under a link

entitled "Show Me the Money," there is a profit calculator that generates the daily, weeldy,

monthly and am~ual sales after the viewer enters figures for the number of machines and the

number of days the viewer thfilks it will take for the machine to sell out of candy (the number of

"Days to Empty"). The box under number of"Days to Empty" only permits .the viewer to enter a

number between one and 365. The Web site also states:

Want a simple explanation of the Return on
Investment (ROI) po.tential of Vend Direct’s
4-in-1 machines? It’s phenomenal. Each 4-in- 1
carousel costs about $40 to fill and yields you
approximately $400 when fully emptied. That’s
a 1000% return on your investment.

(Emphasis and italics in original.)

Finally, the Web site has a "Quick Reference Table," which shows the profit that can be made

with one, ten, twenty and forty vending machines.

12. In immediate conjunction with the earnings representations on the Web site,



defendants fail to disclose additional information, including the number and percentage of prior

purchasers lmown by defendants to have achieved the same or better results.

13. " The written material that defendants send to prospective purchasers includes a

basic francliise disclosure document, This disclosure document, however, is incomplete or

inaccurate because it fails to disclose, inter alia, information concerning other business venture

purchasers.

THE FRANCHISE RULE

14. The business ventures sold by the defendants are fianchises, as "franchise" is



reasonable basis for the earnings claim is available to prospective

franchisees, 16 C.F.R. § 436.!(b)(2) and (c)(2);

(c) provide, as prescribed by the Rule, an earnings claim document containing

information that constitutes a reasonable basis for any earnings claim it

makes, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(b) and (c); and

(d) clearly and conspicuously disclose, in ilmnediate conjunction witla any

generally disseminated earnings claim, additional information including

the number and percentage of prior purchasers l~nown by the franchisor to

have achieved the same or better results, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(e)(3) - (4).

17. Pursuant to Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57a(d)(3), and 16 C.F.R.

§ 436. i, violations of the Franchise Rule constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or

affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

VIOLATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE RULE

COUNT I

Basic Disclosure Violations

18. In co~mection with the offering of franchises, as "franchise" is defined in Section

436.2(a) of the Franchise Rule, the defendants have violated Section 436.1 (a) of the Rule and

Section 5(a) 0fthe FTC Act by failing to provide prospective franchisees’with accurate and

complete basic disclosure documents as prescribed by the Rule.

COUNT II

Earnings Disclosure Violations

19. Iaa c0~mection with the offering of franchises, as "franchise" is defined in Section
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436.2(a) of the Franchise Rule, the defendants violate Sections 436.1(b) - (c) of the Rule and

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act by making earnings claims to prospective franchisees while, inter

alia: (1) lacking a reasonable basis for each claim at the time it is made; (2) failing ~o disclose,

in ilmnediate conjunction with each earnhags claim, and in a clear and conspicuous maimer, that

material which constitutes a reasonabl~ basis for the claim is available to prospective franchisees;

and/or (3) failing to provide prospective, franchisees with an earnings claim document, as

prescribed by the Rule.

COUNT III

Generally Disseminated Earnings Claims Violations

20. In comaection with the offering of franchises, as "franchise" is defined in Section

436.2(a) of the Franchise Rule, the defendants violate Section 436.1 (e) of the Rule and Section

5(a) of the FTC Act by malting generally disseminated earnings claims without, inter alia,

disclosing, in immediate conjunction with the claims, information required by the Franchise



injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement and restitution, to

prevent and remedy any violations of any provision of law enforced by the Federal Trade

Cormnission.

23. Section 5im)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.SIC. 9 45(m)(1)(A), as modified by

Section 4 of the Federal Civil Penalties h~flation Adjustmem Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. 9 2461 note,

as amended, and as implemented by 16 C.F.R. 9 1.98(d) (1997), authorizes this Court to award

monetary civil pena!ties of not more than $1 t,000 for each violation of the Franchise Rule. The

defendants’ violations of the Rule were colmnitted with.the lcnowledge required by Section

5(m).(1)(A) of the FTC Act, i5 U.S.C. 9 45(m)(1)(A).

24. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57b, authorizes this Court to grant such

relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers or other persons resulting from

the defendants’ violations of the Franchise Rule, including the rescission and reformation of

contracts, and the refund of money.

25. This Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief

to remedy injury caused by the defendants’ law violations.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized by Sections 5(a),

5(m)(1)(A), 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 99 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 57b, and

pursuant to its own equitable powers:

I. Enter judgnnent against the defendants and in favor of the plaintiff for each

violation alleged in this complaint;

2. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act
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and the Franchise Rule by defendants;

3. Award plaintiffmonetary civil penalties from each defendant for every

violation of the Franchise Rule;

4. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to

consumers resulting froxn the defendants’ violations of the FTC Act and the Franchise Ruie,

including but not limited to, rescission of.contracts, the refund of monies paid; and the

disgorgement of ill-gotten gains by the defendants; and

5. Award plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Dated: November 30, 2006

OF COUNSEL:
LOIS C. GREISMAN
Associate Director for Marketing Practices
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

HILLARY A DAVIDSON
Attorney
Federal Trade Commission
600 Pem~sylvania Ave., N.W., Prin. 286
Washington, D.C. 20580
Phone: (202) 326-2384
Fax: (202) 326-3395

Respectfully submitted,

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
PETER D. KEISLER
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TROY A. Eli)
United States Attorney

/s Lisa A. Clkristim~
LISA A. CHRISTIAN
Assistant U.S, Attorney for the District of
Colorado
1225 Seventeenth Street, Suite 700
Denver, Colorado 80202
Phone: (303) 454-0157
Fax: (303) 454-0404
Email: Lisa.Chrisfian@usdoj .gov
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EUGENE M. THIROLF
Director
Office of Consumer Litigation

/s Amy E. Goldfrallk
AMY E. GOLDFRANK
Trial Attorney
Office of Consumer Litigation
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 386
1200 Pemasylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20044
Phone: (202) 307-0050
Fax: (202) 514-8742
Email: amy.goldfrank@usdoj.gov
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